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Mission

To pursue excellence for superior service
with ships operated and maintained

at the highest standards of quality to
enhance the long term interests of all our

stakeholders.

To maintain the position that
‘our customers are our partners in business’.

To expand our fleet of multipurpose
ships and develop new business towards

sustainable growth.

To be a reliable and competent partner in
the international shipping community and

become the leading ship owner in
Sri Lanka.
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Annual General Meeting

NOTICE OF MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting 
of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC will be held on 23rd 
September 2014 at 9.30 a.m. at BCIS (Bandaranaike Center 
for International Studies) Auditorium, BMICH, Bauddhaloka 
Mawatha, Colombo 07, for the following purposes:

Agenda
1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board 

of Directors and the Statement of Audited Accounts for 
the year ended 31st March 2014 and the Report of the 
Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Directors in terms of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

• Mr. A N U Jayawardena, who is 77 years of age as a 
Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007. Accordingly, the following resolution to be 
passed for this purpose, if thought fit.

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED:
To re-elect Mr. A N U Jayawardena, who is 77 years of age 
as a Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 and it is specially declared that the age limit of 
70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 
7 of 2007 shall not apply to the said Mr. A N U Jayawardena.

• Captain K Kriwat, who has reached the age of 73 as a 
Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007. Accordingly, the following resolution to be 
passed for this purpose, if thought fit.

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED:
To re-elect Captain K Kriwat, who has reached the age of 73 
as a Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 and it is specially declared that the age limit of 
70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 
7 of 2007 shall not apply to the said Captain K Kriwat.

• Mr. T N Jayasinghe, who has reached the age of 70 as 
a Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007. Accordingly, the following resolution to be 
passed for this purpose, if thought fit.

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED:
To re-elect Mr.T N Jayasinghe, who has reached the age of 
70 as a Director in terms of Section 211 of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007 and it is specially declared that the 
age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to the said Mr. 
T.N.Jayasinghe

3. To re-elect Mr. H A R K Wickramatileka who retires by 
rotation in terms of Article 84, of the Articles of Association 
of the Company, and being eligible offers himself for re-
election as a Director.

4. To re-appoint the Auditors Messrs. Ernst & Young and 
to authorize the Board of Directors to determine their 
remuneration.

5. To authorise Directors to determine contribution to 
Charities.

6. To consider any other business of which due notice has 
been given.

By Order of the Board
Managers & Secretaries (Private) Limited
Secretaries

Colombo
29th August 2014
 

Note:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead 
and a Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose.  The proxy 
need not be a member of the Company.

The completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the 
registered office No. 108, Aluthmawatha, Colombo 15, 
not less than forty eight hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting.

Any Member or Proxy holder attending the meeting is kindly 
requested to bring this report along with his/her National 
Identity Card or Passport for identification purposes.
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The Chairman’s Review - 2013/2014

It is with pleasure that I welcome all of you to the 33rd 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

Further to reviews of the previous years, despite some 
expectations of recovery, the recession in the shipping 
industry has continued for the 6th consecutive year due 
mainly to the continuing economic recession in the USA and 
Europe.  The policy decision by the Head of the US Federal 
Reserve Bank to stop injecting funds into the US economy 
has unfortunately had a negative impact on the initial signs 
of recovery that were emerging in the Euro zone economies, 
as the two economies are inextricably linked.

With charter rates continuing to be unstable, the position 
in the Company has deteriorated further. However the 
German Bank has continued to cooperate with the Company 
in handling the situation and the Company continued to 
pay only the interest and a 25% component of the capital 
of the loan installment. The present charter rates are USD 
6,000 for Mercs Uva and Euro 4,615 for Mercs Uhana and 
the indications are that these charter rates will remain 
unchanged for some time to come.

During the year under review the Group made a net loss 
after tax of Rs. 188.4 Million compared to a net loss of 
Rs.133.5 Million last year, whilst the Company showed a loss 
after tax of Rs. 13 Million as compared to a net profit after tax 
last year of Rs. 7.6 Million.

The Company owned building at Aluthmawatha Road has 
been successfully renovated and refurbished and given out 
on rent at market rate to an affiliated company. With the 
promotion of a group concept the company occupies rent 
free space in the building.

The other building situated at 441, K Cyril C Perera 
Mawatha owned by the Company has now been leased to 
a Singaporean Chinese Company for a contract period of 3 
years which provides a stream of income for the Company.

The Company investment of Rs. 32.5 Million in the joint 
venture with Hemas Transportation (Pvt) Ltd is being 
gradually eroded as the investment is not bringing in the 
expected returns due to a variety of reasons that have 
emerged to handicap the continuous operation of the boats.

We continue to hope that the world economic recession will 
ease and that the situation will improve in the near future. 
Meanwhile your company has, in the present circumstances, 
taken the following measures to mitigate the problems faced 
by it.

1. Continued negotiations are in progress with the German 
Lending Bank to obtain an acceptable rescheduling 
arrangement for the loan.

2. Continued control of operational costs is being 
implemented and administrative costs have been reduced 
to the bare minimum.

3. We are negotiating the best possible charter rates in the 
charter market, coupled with a profit sharing arrangement 
with the charterer on the operation of these two vessels.

It remains for me to extend my appreciation and thanks to 
my fellow Board Members and to the Management and staff 
of the Group for their unstinted support through another 
difficult year. I would also wish especially to thank the 
shareholders for the understanding and support that they 
have extended during the difficult period that we have been 
facing in the recent past.

A N U Jayawardena
Chairman
Colombo

15th August 2014
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together 
with the Audited Accounts for the Company and the Group, 
for the year ended 31st March 2014, to be presented at the 
Thirty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Review of the Year
The Chairman’s review on page 04 describes the Company’s 
affairs and mentions important events that occurred during 
the year, and up to the date of this report. This report 
together with the audited financial statements reflect the 
state of the affairs of the Company.

Principal Activities / Core Business
The main activity of the Company and subsidiaries is the 
business of ship owners and operators.

Financial Statements 
The Financial Statements prepared in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 151 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007 are given on pages 17 to 50 in this Annual Report.

Independent Auditor’s Report
The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is given on 
page 16 of this report.

Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in preparation of the 
financial statements are given on pages 21 to 33. There were 
no changes in Accounting Policies adopted by the Company 
during the year under review.

Financial Results/Profit and Appropriations
The Statement of Comprehensive Income is set out on page 
17.

Property, Plant & Equipment
During the year under review the Company did not invest in 
property, plant & equipment.

Information relating to movement in Property, Plant & 
Equipment during the year is disclosed under Note 12 to the 
financial statement.

Market Value of Freehold Land
The property owned by the Company at 441  K Cyril C 
Perera Mawatha, Colombo 14 was last measured for fair 
value on the 23rd of March 2014 by Mr. S J A N Jayakody, a 

Professional Valuer, up to an amount of Rs.52.5 Million.

The property owned by the Company at 108, Aluthmawatha 
Road, Colombo 15 was last measured for fair value on the 
9th of April 2014 by Mr. S J A N Jayakody a Professional 
Valuer, up to an amount of Rs.107 Million.

Investments
Details of long-term Investments held by the Company are 
given in Note 14 to the financial statements on page 40.

Directors’ Responsibilities
The Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities is given on 
page 10 of this report.

Corporate Governance
The Company has complied with the corporate governance 
rules laid down under the listing rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange, and is given on pages 10 to 14.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2014.

Reserves
The Reserves and Accumulated Loss as at 31st March 2014 
amount to (Rs. 73,225,165) as against a positive reserve of  
Rs. 112,530,980 as at 31st March 2013. The breakup and the 
movement are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity 
in the financial statements.

Stated Capital
As per the terms of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the 
stated capital of the Company is Rs. 37,362,606/- as at 31st 
March 2014. The details are given in Note 19 to the financial 
statement on page 43.

Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no material events occurring after the Balance 
Sheet date that require adjustments, or disclosure which 
require adjustment in the Financial Statements other than 
those mentioned in Note 25 to the Financial Statements.

Going Concern
The Directors have reviewed the Company’s business plans 
and are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources 
to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.  
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company (Contd...)

As such, the financial statements have been prepared on 
that basis. 

Statutory Payments
The declaration relating to Statutory Payments is made in the 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 10.

Interests Register
Details of the transactions with Director-related entities are 
disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements on page 47, 
and have been declared at the Board meeting, pursuant to 
Section 192 (2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee
Following are the names of the Directors comprising the 
Audit Committee of the Board.

1. Mr. T N Jayasinghe (Chairman)
2. Mr. C P P G Hapudeniya
3. Mr. G M Vikum Pradeepa 

Details are given under Corporate Governance on page 15.

Remuneration Committee
Following are the names of the Directors comprising the 
Remuneration Committee of the Board.

1. Mr. C P P G Hapudeniya (Chairman)
2. Mr. T N Jayasinghe

Details are given under Corporate Governance on page 11.

Share Information and Substantial Shareholdings
The distribution of shareholding market value of shares and 
Twenty largest Shareholders are given in page 50.

The earnings per share, dividends per share, net assets per 
share are given in Financial Highlights on page 53 of this 
Annual Report.

Directors 
The Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2014 and 
their brief profiles are given on pages 08 to 09 in this report.

During the year under review the Board met on 04 
occasions. The attendance at these meetings was

Name of Director Attendance
A N U Jayawardena 03/04
Capt. K Kriwat 04/04
T Kriwat 04/04
H A R K Wickramatilake 04/04
T N Jayasinghe 03/04
C P P G Hapudeniya 03/04
I A H Esufally 00/04
G M Vikum Pradeepa 03/04
S Obadage 03/04
Ms. K A C Wilson 02/04     

In accordance with Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 
of 2007, Mr. A N U  Jayawardena who is 77 years of age and 
being eligible had offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 
7 of 2007, Captain K Kriwat who has reached the age of 73 
retires and being eligible has offered himself for re-election

In accordance with Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 
of 2007, Mr. T N Jayasinghe who has reached the age of 70 
retires and being eligible has offered himself for re-election

In terms of Article 86 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. H A R K  Wickramatileke retires by rotation 
and being eligible had offered himself for re-election.

Directors’ Shareholding
The interest of the Directors in the shares of the Company as 
at 31st March were as follows;

 No. of Ordinary Shares as at
 31.03.2014      31.03.2013

Mr. A N U Jayawardena 01 01
Mr. H A R K Wickramatileka 11,414 11,414
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company (Contd...)

Independence of Directors
In accordance with Rule 7.10.2 of Colombo Stock Exchange 
Rules on Corporate Governance (‘CSE Rules’), 

A N U Jayawardena
Capt. K Kriwat
H A R K Wickramatileka
T N Jayasinghe
C P P G Hapudeniya
I A H Esufally
G M Vikum Pradeepa
S Obadage
Ms. K A C Wilson         

who are Non-Executive Directors of the Company, have 
submitted a signed and dated declaration to the Board of 
their Independence.

Donations 
There were no donations made during the year.  

Auditors
The resolutions to appoint the present Auditors, Messrs. 
Ernst & Young Chartered Accountant, who have expressed 
their willingness to continue in office, will be proposed at the 
Annual General Meeting.

The following payments were made to them during the year: 

 Group    Company
 Rs.       Rs.
Audit Fees 1,059,173 393,109
Fees for other services 543,200 420,000
(Tax related work)

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not 
have any relationship on interest in the Company. The 
Audit committee reviews the appointment of the Auditors, 
its effectiveness and its relationship with the Company 
including the level of audit and non-audit fees paid to the 
Auditor.  Details on the work of the Audit Committee are set 
out under Corporate Governance.

Notice of Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 23rd September 
2014 at 9.30 a.m. at BCIS (Bandaranaike Center for 
International Studies) Auditorium, BMICH, Bauddhaloka 
Mawatha, Colombo 07.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting appears on page 
03.

For and on behalf of the Board.

Mr. A N U Jayawardena/Chairman

Mr. H A R K Wickramatileka/Director

Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Ltd
Secretaries

29th August 2014
Colombo
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Directors’ Profiles 

A N U Jayawardena
M.A., LI.B. (Cantab) Barrister at Law of Lincolns Inn.  
Attorney at Law of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka.  

Founder Director of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC 
and presently its Chairman, and Founder Director (Past) of 
Air Lanka. Past Director of two Commercial Banks and of 
two Leasing and Financial Services Companies. Presently 
Director of Union Chemical PLC and also Director of several 
other companies.

Capt. K Kriwat
Master Mariner

Founder Director of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC.  
Presently the Deputy Chairman of the Company. His career 
extends to more than 50 years at sea and on shore with a 
wealth of experience in Shipping and Ship Management. 

T Kriwat
Solicitor at Law in Germany

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in October 2000.  He is the Managing Director of both 
Mercantile Shipping Company PLC and Reederei Eugen 
Friederich, Germany, the main shareholder of the Company 
at present. He is also a Director of number of shipping 
companies in Germany with more than 10 years experience 
in Shipping and Ship Management.

H A R K Wickramatileka
Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka
B.Sc. (Public Administration)
Diploma in Professional Shipping, Norwegian Shipping 
Academy, Oslo

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in May 1991. Held the position of Director Finance for 
over 15 years. He is a Director of Colombo Dockyard PLC 
and several other companies. Also he is the Chairman of 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Ltd, Mercantile Marine 
Management Ltd., Royali Power (Pvt) Ltd and Royali Agro 
(Pvt) Ltd.

T N Jayasinghe
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants, U.K.

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in November 2006.  He is a Director of Union Chemicals 
Lanka PLC and Chairman of the Audit Committee of that 
Company.  Managing Director of Premier Managements Ltd 
and Deputy Chairman of several companies in the Allied 
Investments Ltd Group.

C P P G Hapudeniya
Associate of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants, U.K.

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in November 2006 with a wealth of experience in Private 
Sector as an entrepreneur. He is the Founder Chairman and 
Managing Director of International Paper Products (Pvt) Ltd 
and counts for over 20 years of experience in the corrugated 
carton industry. He is currently serving as the Chairman of 
the Remuneration Committee and is also a member of the 
Audit Committee of the Company. 

I A H Esufally
Bachelor of Arts ( Honours) Degree in Accounting and 
Economics from the University of Kent , U.K.

He was appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company 
PLC Board in January 2009.  He is on the Board of Hemas 
Holdings PLC and Chairman of its Transportation Sector. He 
is also Chairman of Hemas Power PLC and counts over 25 
years management experience .
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Directors’ Profiles (Contd...)

G M Vikum Pradeepa
Bachelor of Commerce (Special) Honours Degree,  
University of Sri Jayawardenepura Sri Lanka.
Master’s Degree in Shipping Management,  
World Maritime University, Malmo Sweden.
Licentiate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of  
Sri Lanka.
Diploma in Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in July 2010.  Presently he is the Finance Manager of Ceylon 
Shipping Corporation with more than 18 years experience in 
shipping.

Sunil Obadage
Bachelor of Arts, University of Colombo, Sri Lanka
Post Graduate Diploma Holder in Professional Shipping from 
Norwegian Shipping Academy of Oslo. 

Appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC Board 
in September 2011. Presently, he functions as the General 
Manager of Ceylon Shipping Corporation Ltd, where he has 
a career record of over 14 years.

He has a continuous carrier record of over 30 years in the 
field of shipping and logistics since he joined the industry 
as a management trainee after completion of his graduation 
from University of Colombo.  

He has worked for National Shipping Company of Saudi 
Arabia at its head office in Riyadh and in the Regional office 
in Singapore for over 12 years in Container Liner Operations 
and Logistics.

He also serves as a member of the Board of Directors of the 
Sri Lanka Port Management & Consultancy Services (Pvt) 
Ltd which is a subsidiary of Sri Lanka Ports Authority.

Kasturi Chellaraja Wilson
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants 
of UK.

She was appointed to the Mercantile Shipping Company 
PLC Board in November 2011. She  is on the Board of 
Management of Hemas Holdings PLC and is the Managing 
Director of the Hemas Transportation Sector, with over 
22 years experience in the Finance, IT, Process and 
Management.
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Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up a policy 
framework for Good Governance Practice to protect and 
enhance the shareholders’ value for the Company.

The Company applies the Code of Best Practice issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and 
complies with the requirements of the Securities Exchange 
Commission of Sri Lanka and the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The responsibilities of the Directors are to exercise in their 
best judgment what they reasonably believe to be in the best 
interest of the Company for the creating of long term value 
for the shareholders.

The Board established two sub-committees namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

The Board has taken necessary steps to ensure that the 
Management discharges its duties responsibly and efficiently 
to meet the above criteria.

Board of Directors
The present Board consists of ten Directors, nine of whom 
are non-executive Directors in compliance with Rule 7.10.1 
(a) and out of the non-executive Directors four are Indepen-
dent Directors in compliance with Rule 7.10.2 (a) of CSE’s 
Listing Rules.

All the Non-executive Directors have submitted a signed 
declaration of Independence in compliance with the Rule 
7.10.2 (b) of CSE’s Listing Rules.

Director Position held on the 
Board

Date of Appointment  
to the Board

Nature of  
Appointment

A N U Jayawardena Chairman 17th March 1981 Non-executive Director

Capt. K Kriwat Deputy Chairman 17th March 1981 Non-executive Director

T Kriwat Managing Director 16th October 2000 Executive Director

H A R K Wickramatileka Director 13th May 1991 Non-executive Director

T N Jayasinghe Director 30th November 2006 Non-executive Independent 
Director

C P P G Hapudeniya Director 30th November 2006 Non-executive Independent 
Director

I A H Esufally Director 22nd January 2009 Non-executive Director

G M Vikum Pradeepa Director 29th July 2010 Non-executive Independent 
Director

S Obadage Director 12th September 2011 Non-executive Independent 
Director

(Mrs) K A C Wilson Director 9th November 2011 Non-executive Director
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Corporate Governance (Contd...)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists of three non-executive independent Directors in compliance to Rule 7.10.6 (a) of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange.

Independence of the Members of the Committees
Mr. T N Jayasinghe is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Management Accountants, UK with over 40 years’ 
experience in the Private Sector locally and abroad is 
independent as per the criteria set out by the Colombo 
Stock Exchange.

Mr. C P P G Hapudeniya is an Associate of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants, UK with a wealth 
of experience in Private Sector as an entrepreneur and is 
independent as per the criteria set out by the Colombo 
Stock Exchange.

Mr. G M Vikum Pradeepa holds a Bachelor of Commerce 
(Special) Degree from University of Sri Jayewardenepura 
and Master’s Degree in Shipping Management from World 
Maritime University, Malmo, Sweden. He is the Finance 
Manager of Ceylon Shipping Corporation Ltd with more than 
15 years’ experience in shipping.
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in the 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration Committee consists of two Non-executive 
independent Directors in compliance to Rule 7.10.5 (a) of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

Director Position held No. of Meetings held

T N Jayasinghe Chairman

06C P P G Hapudeniya Member

G M Vikum Pradeepa Member

Director Position held No. of Meetings held

C P P G Hapudeniya Chairman

01T N Jayasinghe Member

G M Vikum Pradeepa Member

discharge of its duties by ensuring that the Company follows 
adequate system of internal controls to minimize risk and 
errors, prepare financial statements in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards and comply with directions 
issued by the Regulatory Authorities and the laws of the 
land.

The Committee met six times during the year assisted by the 
Chief Financial Officer 

The Committee also met with the External Auditors and 
reported their findings and recommendations to the Board 
regularly.
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The Remuneration Committee recommends the 
remuneration payable to the Executive Director based on 
relevant criteria. The Board makes the final determination 
after consideration of such recommendation.

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION
The total of Directors’ Remuneration is reported in Note 26.1 
to the Financial Statements in accordance with Rule 6.6(b) of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS
All statutory payments have been made by the Company.

LEVEL OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CSE’S  
LISTING RULES
Level of compliance with the CSE’s Listing Ruling section 6, 
Rules on Corporate Governance are given in the following 
table.

Corporate Governance (Contd...)

Rule No. Subject Applicable requirement
Compliance 

Status
Details

7.10.1 Non-Executive 
Directors

At least one third of the total number 
of Directors should be Non-executive 
Directors

Compliant Nine of the ten 
Directors are Non-
Executive Directors

7.10.2 (a) Independent Directors Two or one third of Non-executive 
Directors, whichever is higher should be 
independent

Compliant Four of the nine Non-
Executive Directors are 
Independent

7.10.2 (b) Independent Directors Each Non-executive Director should 
submit a declaration of independence/
non-independence in the prescribed 
format

Compliant Non-executive Directors 
have submitted the 
declaration.

7.10.3 (a) Disclosure relating to 
Directors

Names of independent Directors should 
be disclosed in the Annual Report

Compliant Given in page 10 under 
the heading Board of 
Directors

7.10.3 (b) Disclosure relating to 
Directors

The basis for the Board to determine a 
Director as independent, as specified in 
criteria for independence is not met

Compliant Given in page 10 under 
the heading Board of 
Directors

7.10.3 (c) Disclosure relating to 
Directors

A brief resume of each Director should 
be included in the Annual Report 
including the areas of expertise

Compliant Given in pages 08 
- 09 under heading 
Directors’ Profiles

7.10.3 (d) Disclosure relating to 
Directors

Forthwith provide a brief resume of new 
Directors appointed to the Board with 
details specified in 7.10.3 (d) to the 
Exchange

n.a No new appointments 
during the period

7.10.5 Remuneration 
Committee

A listed company shall have a 
Remuneration Committee

Compliant Remuneration 
Committee in place. 
Please refer page 11

7.10.5 (a) Composition of 
Remuneration 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-executive 
Directors a majority of whom will be 
independent

Compliant Both Directors are 
independent
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Corporate Governance (Contd...)

Rule No. Subject Applicable requirement
Compliance 

Status
Details

7.10.5 (b) Functions of 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall 
recommend the remuneration of Chief 
Executive Officer and Executive Directors

Compliant As above and stated in 
this Report

7.10.5 (c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report relating 
to Remuneration 
Committee

The Annual Report should set out;

a) Names of directors comprising 
the Remuneration Committee

b) Statement of Remuneration 
Policy

c) Aggregated remuneration paid 
to Executive and Non-executive 
Directors

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 11

7.10.6 Audit Committee The company shall have an Audit 
Committee

Compliant Given in page 15 under 
the heading Audit 
Committee

7.10.6 (a) Composition of Audit 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-executive 
Directors a majority of whom will be 
independent

Non-executive Director  shall be 
appointed as the Chairman of the 
Committee

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer should attend Audit 
Committee Meetings

The Chairman of the Audit Committee or 
one member should be a member of a 
professional accounting body

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

As above

As above

As above

As above

7.10.6 (b) Audit Committee 
Functions

Should be as outlined in the Section 7 of 
the Listing Rules

Compliant As above
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7.10.6 (c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report relating 
to Audit Committee

a) Names of Directors comprising the 
Audit Committee

b) The Audit Committee shall make a 
determination of the independence 
of the Auditors and disclose for 
such determination

c) The Annual Report shall contain 
a Report of the Audit Committee 
setting out of the manner of 
Compliance of the functions

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

As above and given in 
this report

As above

As above

Rule No. Subject Applicable requirement
Compliance 

Status
Details

Corporate Governance (Contd...)
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Audit Committee Report

The primary role of the Audit Committee is to oversee the 
integrity of the Company’s financial accounting process and 
internal controls. It is appointed by the Board of Directors 
and comprise of three Non-executive Independent Directors.

The Audit Committee met on 6 occasions during the year 
ended March 31, 2014.

The Audit Committee examines any matters relating to the 
financial reporting system, the system of internal control over 
financial reporting and the audit process.

The Audit Committee also reviews and approved the Annual 
and Interim Financial Statements prior to the approval by 
the Board. The Audit Committee is briefed by the external 
auditors Messrs. Ernst & Young on the progress and 
conduct of the statutory audit and discusses audit related 
issues with them.

The Audit Committee examined the independence of the 
External Auditors having any interest in the Company 
and evaluated the performance and service provided and 
recommends to the Board of Directors that, Messrs. Ernst & 
Young be appointed as the Auditors of the Company for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2015, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

T N Jayasinghe
Chairman – Audit Committee

15th August 2014
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Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements 
of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC (“Company”), the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries which comprise the Statements of Financial 
Position as at 31 March 2014, and the Statements of 
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity 
and Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility 
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of Financial Statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies, and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Financial 
Statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting policies used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall Financial 
Statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which 
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the 
Company maintained proper accounting records for the year 
ended 31 March 2014 and the Financial Statements give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company 
as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give 
a true and fair view of the financial position  as at 31 March 
2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, of the Company and its Subsidiaries dealt 
with thereby, so far as concerns  the shareholders of the 
Company.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2.4 
in the financial statements. The Group has incurred a Net 
Loss of Rs.185.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 
and the Group’s Current Liabilities exceeded its Current 
Assets by Rs.12.8 million and has a negative Net Assets 
position of Rs.30.9 million as of the balance sheet date. The 
resulting uncertainties and the management assessment of 
the  mitigating factors are enumerated under Note 2.4 in the 
financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These Financial Statements also comply with the 
requirements of Section 151(2) and 153 (2) to 153 (7) of the 
Companies Act No.7 of 2007.

15th August 2014
Colombo.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MERCANTILE SHIPPING COMPANY PLC
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2014

 Group  Company 
2014
 Rs. 

2013
 Rs. 

2014
 Rs. 

2013
 Rs. Note

Revenue 5  568,764,858  564,981,868  5,736,731  17,221,610 

Cost of Sales  (617,075,608)  (537,523,387)  -  - 

Gross Profit/(Loss )  (48,310,750)  27,458,481  5,736,731  17,221,610 

Other Income 6  3,264,395  5,430,432  3,203,566  1,244,061 

Selling and Marketing Expenses  (232,025)  (458,493)  (232,025)  (153,500)

Administrative Expenses  (22,141,364)  (54,983,634)  (18,645,981)  (20,122,324)

Finance Cost 7.1  (115,721,410)  (111,406,937)  (495,644)  (71,757)

Finance Income 7.2  2,655,655  3,573,128  2,654,583  3,573,128 

Share of Loss of Joint Venture (net of tax) 8  (7,273,208)  (2,320,001)  (7,273,208)  (2,320,001)

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 9  (187,758,707)  (132,707,023)  (15,051,977)  (628,783)

Current Year Income Tax Reversal 10  2,002,562  8,262,874  2,002,562  8,262,874 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (185,756,145)  (124,444,149)  (13,049,415)  7,634,091 

Other Comprehensive Income

Net Exchange Gain/(Loss) on Translation of Foreign Operations  (2,631,503)  (9,063,277)  -  - 

Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year, net of tax  (2,631,503)  (9,063,277)  -  - 

Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year, net of tax  (188,387,648)  (133,507,426)  (13,049,415)  7,634,091 

Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share 11  (65.29)  (43.74)  (4.59)  2.68 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 21 through 49 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2014

 Group  Company 
As at  31 March  31 March  31 March  31 March 

2014 2013 2014 2013
ASSETS  Note  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12  3,452,493,245  3,338,869,259  1,020,625  17,172,116 
Investment Property 13  70,955,955  13,809,818  70,955,955  13,809,818 
Investments in Subsidiaries 14  -  -  252,646,078  252,646,078 
Investment in Joint Venture 8  20,406,792  27,679,999  20,406,792  27,679,999 
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 15  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630 

 3,545,153,623  3,381,656,707  346,327,080  312,605,642 
Current Assets
Inventories 16  8,527,499  2,980,354  -  - 
Trade and Other Receivables 17  20,893,849  20,586,128  20,893,849  17,930,742 
Advance and Prepayments  11,427,247  7,049,312  718,432  1,228,209 
Income Tax Recoverable  10,309,910  10,309,910  -  - 
Other Current Financial Assets 15  12,975,836  21,779,379  12,975,836  21,779,379 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18  79,414,300  101,952,794  2,861,194  5,408,632 

 143,548,640  164,657,877  37,449,310  46,346,961 
Total Assets  3,688,702,262  3,546,314,584  383,776,390  358,952,603 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Stated Capital 19  37,262,606  37,262,606  37,262,606  37,262,606 
Exchange Reserve  5,037,872  7,669,375  -  - 
Retained Earnings  (73,225,165)  112,530,980  263,777,052  276,826,467 
Total Equity  (30,924,686)  157,462,962  301,039,658  314,089,073 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 20  3,560,938,976  3,254,116,738  35,500,000  - 
Retirement Benefit Liability 21  361,561  840,468  -  458,621 
Deferred Tax Liability 10  2,004,691  352,338  2,004,691  352,338 

 3,563,305,229  3,255,309,544  37,504,691  810,959 

Current Liabilities 
Other Payables 22  61,653,760  44,709,869  33,583,284  30,599,424 
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 20  85,345,615  74,625,649  3,546,760  467,000 
Tax Payables  9,322,345  14,206,561  8,101,995  12,986,147 

 156,321,720  133,542,079  45,232,039  44,052,571 
Total Equity and Liabilities  3,688,702,262  3,546,314,584  383,776,390  358,952,603 

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.   
 

Mrs. C.D.A. Peiris
Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on 
behalf of the Board by;

A N U Jayawardena     H A R K Wickramatilake
       Chairman                                                                                                   Director   

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 17 through 49 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.   
      
15th August 2014         
Colombo         
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 March 2014

Group  Stated  Foreign  Retained Total
 Capital  Currency  Earnings Equity

 Translation 
 Reserve 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April 2012  37,262,606  16,732,652  236,975,130  290,970,388 

Loss for the year  -  -  (124,444,149)  (124,444,149)
Other Comprehensive Income  -  (9,063,277)  -  (9,063,277)
Total Comprehensive Income  -  (9,063,277)  (124,444,149)  (133,507,426)

Balance as at 31 March 2013  37,262,606  7,669,375  112,530,980  157,462,962 

Loss for the year  -  -  (185,756,145)  (185,756,145)
Other Comprehensive Income  -  (2,631,503)  -  (2,631,503)
Total Comprehensive Income  -  (2,631,503)  (185,756,145)  (188,387,648)

Balance as at 31 March 2014  37,262,606  5,037,872  (73,225,165)  (30,924,686)

Company  Stated  Retained  Total 
 Capital  Earnings Equity

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April 2012  37,262,606  269,192,376  306,454,982 

Profit for the year  -  7,634,091  7,634,091 
Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  - 
Total Comprehensive Income  -  7,634,091  7,634,091 

Balance as at 31 March 2013  37,262,606  276,826,468  314,089,074 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  (13,049,415)  (13,049,415)
Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  - 
Total Comprehensive Income  -  (13,049,415)  (13,049,415)

Balance as at 31 March 2014  37,262,606  263,777,052  301,039,658 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 17 through 49 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 March 2014

Group Company 
2014 2013 2014 2013

Note  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before Tax  (187,758,707)  (132,707,023)  (15,051,977)  (628,783)

Adjustment For
Depreciation 12 & 13 222,087,065  179,332,271  2,740,655  3,025,906 
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 6  (2,589,286)  -  (2,589,286)  - 
Fair value adjustment of investments  (19,992)  -  (19,992)  - 
Provision for Defined Benefit Obligation 21  (58,632)  209,828  -  - 
Finance Cost 7.1  115,721,410  111,406,937  495,644  71,757 
Finance Income 7.2  (2,655,655)  (3,573,128)  (2,654,583)  (3,573,128)
Share of Loss of Investment in Joint Venture 8  7,273,208  2,320,001  7,273,208  2,320,001 
Exchange (Gain)/Loss 6  (7,521)  (2,629,466)  -  (178,965)

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 151,991,890  154,359,419  (9,806,333)  1,036,788 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (5,547,145)  1,806,750  -  - 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (307,784)  9,647,689  (2,963,107)  3,708,512 
(Increase)/Decrease in Advance and Prepayment  (4,377,935)  1,581,513  509,776  (346,275)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  (5,238,693)  (28,445,403)  2,525,239  (6,476,788)

Cash Generated from/(used in) Operations 136,520,333  138,949,969  (9,734,424)  (2,077,762)

Finance Cost Paid  (93,997,448)  (90,763,910)  (495,644)  - 
Defined Benefit Obligation Paid 21  -  (369,000)  -  (369,000)
Tax Paid  (965,778)  (871,352)  (965,778)  (871,352)

Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities  40,311,754  46,945,707  (11,195,846)  (3,318,114)

Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 12  (384,000)  (15,500)  (384,000)  (15,500)
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  2,629,195  -  2,589,286  - 
Acquisition of Investment Property 13.3  (43,351,301)  (4,989,818)  (43,351,301)  (4,989,818)
Finance Income Received 7.2  2,392,197  3,573,128  2,391,124  3,573,128 
Investments in Joint Venture 8  -  (30,000,000)  -  (30,000,000)
Investment in Fixed Deposits  (12,756,281)  -  (12,756,281)  - 

Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities  (51,470,189)  (31,432,190)  (51,511,171)  (31,432,190)

Cash Flows from/(used in) Financing Activities

Repayment of Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 20.1.2  (79,652,120)  (1,393,108)  (1,500,000)  - 
Proceeds from Interest bearing loans  40,000,000  -  40,000,000 

Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities  (39,652,120)  (1,393,108)  38,500,000  - 

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes  5,376,697  (11,042,503)  -  178,965 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (44,188,505)  3,077,906  (24,207,015)  (34,571,339)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  123,056,044  119,978,137  26,521,448  61,092,787 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 18  78,867,540  123,056,044  2,314,434  26,521,448 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 17 through 49 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General 
Mercantile Shipping Company PLC (“Company”) is a Public 
Limited Liability Company, incorporated and domiciled 
in Sri Lanka and listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange. 
The registered office and the principal place of business 
are located at No.108, Aluthmawatha Road, Colombo 15. 
The former registered office and the principal place of the 
business of the Company was at No. 441, K Cyril C Perera 
Mawatha, Colombo 13.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Mercantile 
Shipping Company PLC for the year ended 31 March 2014 
comprises of the Company and its subsidiaries, Mercantile 
Global Shipping Limited, Mercantile Emerald Shipping 
(Private) Limited.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
During the year, the principal activities of the Group were as 
follows:

Mercantile Shipping Company PLC 
During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were carrying out investment activities in shipping and 
providing management services in relation to shipping to 
the subsidiaries in the Group. The Company also carried out 
renting of investment properties during the year.

Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited 
The Company is principally engaged in owning and 
chartering of ocean going vessels.

Mercantile Global Shipping Limited
Not in operation and awaiting tax clearance for closure.
 
1.3 Date of Authorization for Issue
The Financial Statements of Mercantile Shipping Company 
PLC for the year ended 31 March 2014 were authorized 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors on 15th August 2014.
 
2. GENERAL POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance  
The Financial Statements which comprise of the Statements 

of Financial Position, Statements of Comprehensive Income, 
Statements of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statements 
together with accounting policies and notes have been 
prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards effective from 1st January 2012, laid down by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in 
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Act No.15 of 1995.

2.2 Basis of preparation 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical 
cost basis, except for the following items and unless 
otherwise indicated in these Financial Statements,

•  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit 
or loss, are measured at fair value

•  Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair 
value

The Financial Statements of Mercantile Global Shipping 
Limited have been prepared other than on a going concern 
basis and the assets and liabilities are recorded at their 
realisable amounts.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees except when otherwise indicated, in which the 
Company’s functional currency is.

2.4 Going Concern
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis taking into consideration the 
financial statements of the group companies other than the 
financial statements of Mercantile Global Shipping Limited. 
The Financial Statements of Mercantile Global Shipping 
Limited have been prepared other than on a going concern 
basis and the assets and liabilities are recorded at their 
realisable amounts.

The Group has incurred a Net Loss of Rs. 185.7 million (2013 
– Rs. 124.4 million) for the year ended 31 March 2014. As at 
balance sheet date the Group’s Current Liabilities exceeded 
Current Assets by Rs. 12.8 million whereas in the previous 
financial year, Current Assets exceeded Current Liabilities 
by Rs. 31.1million . Further, the Group’s Net Asset position  
has become a negative of Rs. 30.9 million (2013-positive 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

Rs.157.4 million) as of the balance sheet date.  

The above group financial results are mainly due to the 
financial performance and conditions of Mercantile Emerald 
Shipping (Pvt) Ltd, which is a fully owned subsidiary  of the 
Company, of which the details are given below:

Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited 

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend 
either to liquidate or to cease trading. During the year the 
Company has incurred a Net Loss of Rs.172 million for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013 – Rs.132 million) and, as 
of that date, the Company’s Current Liabilities exceeded its 
Current Assets by Rs.43.2 million (2013 –Rs.9.5 million) and 
the Company has a negative Net Assets position of Rs.117.6 
million (2013 –Positive Rs.57.6 million).
 
Although these factors may create uncertainty regarding 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, the Directors have made an 
assessment and are confident of the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern based on the following 
mitigating factors;

• Continuous chartering arrangements are being made 
at prevailing market rates, with the full knowledge of 
the Bremer Landes bank, coupled with a profit sharing 
arrangement with the charterer

• The Bremer Landes bank has not stated or indicated to 
date that they would be foreclosing on the loans as they 
are aware of the prevailing depression in the international 
shipping market. Furthermore, they have obtained a 
Condition Report of the vessels and are satisfied in the way 
vessels are being maintained and operated

• Negotiations are ongoing with the Bremer Landes bank, 
Germany to obtain the rescheduling of the loan as and 
when it becomes necessary

• The Group is continuously following the developments 
in the shipping industry with a view to capitalizing on any 
new opportunities emerging in the market

• A continuous control on operational costs is being 
maintained and administration costs have been brought 
down to a bare minimum

2.5 Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the 
Financial Statements of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC 
and its subsidiaries Mercantile Global Shipping Limited, 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited  and its Joint 
Venture H&M Shipping Services (Pvt) Ltd for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2014. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of 
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains 
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases. The Financial Statements of the 
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as 
the parent company, unless specifically stated. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses 
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

2.5.1 Subsidiaries 
Mercantile Global Shipping Limited and Mercantile Emerald 
Shipping (Private) Limited are fully owned subsidiaries of the 
Company.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of 
acquisition or incorporation, being the date on which the 
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until 
the date that such control ceases.

Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the parent. 
Control exists when the parent holds more than 50% of 
voting rights or otherwise has a controlling interest.

In the Company’s Financial Statements investments in 
subsidiaries have been accounted for at cost, net of any 
impairment losses which are charged to the Income 
Statement. Income from these investments are recognized 
only to the extent of dividend received.

2.5.2 Interest in a joint venture
The Group has an interest in a joint venture which is a jointly 
controlled entity, whereby the venturers have a contractual 
arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic 
activities of the entity. The agreement requires unanimous 
agreement for financial and operating decisions among 
the venturers. The Group recognises its interest in the joint 
venture using the equity method. Under this method the 
Group presents its aggregate share of profit or loss from the 
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jointly controlled entity on the face of its Income Statement. 
Also, the investment is presented as a non-current asset on 
the face of the statement of financial position.

Upon loss of joint control, the Group measures and 
recognises its remaining investment at its fair value. Any 
difference between the carrying amount of the former jointly 
controlled entity upon loss of joint control and the fair value 
of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal are 
recognised in the Income Statement. When the remaining 
investment constitutes significant influence, it is accounted 
for as investment in an associate.

Joint venture entered into by the Company/Group which has 
been accounted for under equity method is;

 Holding Percentage
 2014    2013
H & M Shipping Services (Private) Limited 50%     50%  

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
     POLICIES
 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently with those used in the previous year.

3.1 Foreign Currency Translation 
The Group’s consolidated Financial Statements are 
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is also the parent 
company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group 
determines its own functional currency and items included 
in the Financial Statements of each entity are measured 
using that functional currency. The Group has elected to 
recycle the gain or loss that arises from the direct method 
of consolidation, which is the method the Group uses to 
complete its consolidation.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by 
the Group entities at the functional currency rates prevailing 
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the 
reporting date.

All differences are taken to the Income Statement with the 
exception of all monetary items that forms part of a net 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in 
other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net 
investment, at which time they are reclassified to the Income 
Statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange 
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in 
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. 
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that 
gave rise to the translation difference (translation differences 
on items whose gain or loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in 
other comprehensive income or profit or loss respectively).

Foreign Operations
The Balance Sheet and Income Statement of Mercantile 
Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Limited , which  is  deemed  to be 
a foreign operation are translated into Sri Lankan Rupees 
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date 
and their Income Statements are translated at an average 
annual rate of exchange for the period. The exchange 
differences arising on the translation are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the 
component of other comprehensive income relating to that 
particular foreign operation is recognized in the Income 
Statement. 

3.2 Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the purpose of presentation of the Income Statement, 
the function of expenses method is adopted, as it represents 
fairly the elements of Group performance.
 
3.2.1 Revenue
The Group’s revenue comprises income earned from 
chartering of vessels to international ship operators under 
time charter hire arrangements.

3.2.2 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue 
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment 
is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking into account 
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contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes 
or duty. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements 
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as 
principal or agent. The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

a) Charter Hire Income
Income from time charter is recognised over the period of 
the time charter agreement on an accrual basis. Any losses 
arising from time charters are provided for in full as soon as 
they are anticipated.

b) Rental Income
Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted 
for on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is 
included under Revenue of the Company.

c) Interest
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
and interest bearing financial assets classified as available 
for sale, interest income or expense is recorded using the 
effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or 
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is 
included in finance income in the Income Statement.

d) Gains and Losses
Net Gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal 
of property, plant and equipment and other noncurrent 
assets including investments have been accounted for in 
the Income Statement, having deducted from proceeds 
on disposal, the carrying amount of the assets and related 
selling expenses. 

e) Other Income
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

3.3 Expenses
All expenditure incurred in the running of the business has 
been charged to income in arriving at the loss for the year.

3.3.1 Finance costs
Finance costs mainly comprises of interest expense on 
borrowings. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 

asset are recognised in Income Statement using the effective 
interest method.

The interest expense component of finance lease payments 
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability.

3.3.2 Taxation

a) Current Income Taxes
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current 
period are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date in the countries where the Group operates and 
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in 
the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income are also 
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income and not in the Income Statement. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 09 November 2007 entered 
into with the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka under Section 
17 of the Board of Investment Law, Mercantile Emerald  
Shipping (Private) Limited’s income from the business of 
international sea cargo operation is exempted, for a period 
of 5 years from the year in which the enterprise commences 
to make profits or any year of assessment not later than 
2 years reckoned from the date of commercial operation 
whichever is earlier as may be specified in a certificate 
issued by the Board.

b) Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are 
recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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•  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

•  In respect of taxable temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable 
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

• Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

 
• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated 

with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized 
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 
and taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Income 
Statement is recognised outside the Income Statement. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities 
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority. 

c) Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of sales tax, except:
• Where the sales tax incurred on purchase of assets or 

services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost 
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as 
applicable

• Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of 
sales tax included. The net amount of sales tax recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial 
position.

d) Economic Service Charge (ESC)
ESC is payable on the liable turnover at specified rates. 
As per the provision of the Economic Service Charge Act 
No. 13 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto, ESC 
is deductible from the income tax liability. Any unclaimed 
liability can be carried forward and set off against the income 
tax payable as per the relevant provision in the Act.

3.4 Assets and bases of their valuation 

3.4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.4.1.1 Basis of measurement
Property, Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing 
component parts of the property, plant and equipment 
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if 
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of 
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Group derecognises the replaced part, and 
recognises the new part with its own associated useful life 
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and depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred. The 
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning 
of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the 
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are 
met. Refer to Significant accounting judgments, estimates 
and assumptions and Provisions for further information 
about the recorded decommissioning Provision.
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 
recoverable.

3.4.1.2 Lease assets
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, 
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

3.4.1.3 Subsequent Costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognised in accordance with the 
derecognition policy given below. 

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and 
Equipment are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

3.4.1.4 Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is derecognised on disposal; or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and 
losses on derecognition are recognised in profit and loss 
and gains are not classified as revenue.  When revalued 
assets are sold, any related amount included in the 
Revaluation Reserve is transferred to Retained Earnings.

3.4.1.5 Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of Income on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 
of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment, since this most 
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the 
shorter of the lease term and the useful lives of equivalent 
owned assets unless it is reasonably certain that the Group 
will have ownership by the end of the lease term. 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows:

Buildings on Freehold Lands 20 Years 
Vessels  15 Years 
Furniture and Fittings   8 Years 
Office Equipment       4 Years 
Motor Vehicles    4 Years 
Air-conditioning Equipment    4 Years 
Computer Equipment   4 Years 
    
The cost of periodic dry-docking of vessels are capitalized 
and depreciated over the period to the next dry-docking 
date. When significant dry-docking costs are incurred prior 
to the expiry of the depreciation period, the remaining costs 
of the previous dry-docking are written off in the month of 
subsequent dry-docking.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use 
and ceases at the earlier of the dates on which the asset is 
classified as held for sale or is derecognized. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any 
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

3.4.1.6 Impairment of Vessels 
The carrying amounts of the vessels of the Group are tested 
for impairment every year.

In assessing the value in use of the vessels, the Group 
has made assumptions about future charter hire rates, 
ship operating expenses, and the estimated remaining 
useful lives and the residual values of the vessels. These 
assumptions are based on historical and cyclical trends as 
well as future expectations. The management believes that 
the assumptions used to evaluate potential impairment are 
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reasonable and appropriate, however such assumption are 
highly subjective. In assessing the fair value less cost to sell 
value of the vessels, management obtains  an independent 
valuation from a professional valuer based on the market 
values.
 
3.4.2 Investment Property
Investment properties are carried at historical cost less 
provision for amortization and impairment. The carrying 
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing 
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the 
recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to 
day servicing of an investment property. 

After initial recognition the Group measures all of its 
investment property in accordance with LKAS 16, Property, 
Plant and Equipment other than those meeting the criteria to 
be classified as held for sale.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they 
have been disposed of or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses 
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are 
recognised in the Income Statement in the year of retirement 
or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only 
when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the end of 
owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to 
another party or completion of construction or development. 
Transfers are made from investment property when, 
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by 
commencement of owner occupation or commencement of 
development with a view to sale.

If the property occupied by the Group as an owner occupied 
property becomes an investment property, the Group 
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy 
stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date 
of change in use. Investment property of the Group is 
amortized over a period of 20 years on a straight line basis.

3.4.3 Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, 
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
the inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Group as a lessee
Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially 
all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the 
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments are apportioned between finance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the 
Income Statement.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 
is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.

3.4.4 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they 
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset, in which case they are 
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

3.4.5 Current Assets
Assets classified as current assets on the Balance Sheet are 
cash and bank balances and those which are expected to be 
realized in cash during the normal operating cycle or within 
one year from the reporting date, whichever is shorter.

3.4.5.1 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value, after making due allowances for obsolete and slow 
moving items. Net realisable value is the price at which 
inventories can be sold in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost 
necessary to make the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present 
location and conditions are accounted using the following 
cost formula:-
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Consumables - At purchase cost on First in First out basis 
 (FIFO)

3.4.5.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, demand 
deposits and short-term deposits less than three months, 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in banks 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments with 
short maturities i.e. three months or less from the date of 
acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents.

3.4.6 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s  non financial assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

3.4.6.1 Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing 
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset.

3.4.6.2 Impairment/ Reversal of impairment
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of 
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses 
are recognised in Income Statements. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed 
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.5 Financial Instruments – Initial recognition and  
      subsequent  measurement

3.5.1 Financial assets

3.5.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified 
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets 
at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term 
deposits, trade and other receivables and quoted and 
unquoted financial investments.

3.5.1.2 Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends 
on their classification as described below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial assets held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit 
or loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are 
carried in the statement of financial position at fair  value 
with net changes in fair value recognised in the Income 
Statement under the category of finance cost. Financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit and loss are designated at their initial 
recognition date and only if the criteria under LKAS 39 are 
satisfied. 

The Group evaluates its financial assets held for trading, to 
determine whether the intention to sell them in the near term 
is still appropriate. When in rare circumstances the Group is 
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets 
and management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable 
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to 
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reclassify these financial assets. The reclassification to 
loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity 
depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not 
affect any financial assets designated at fair value through 
profit or loss using the fair value option at designation.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method (EIR) , less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the Income Statement. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Income 
Statement in finance costs for loans and in other operating 
expenses for receivables. 

However, loans and receivable balances expected to be 
realized in cash during the normal operating cycle or within 
one year from the reporting date are not required to measure 
at amortized cost subsequently.

Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to 
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and 
ability to hold them to maturity. After initial measurement, 
held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income 
in the Income Statement. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Income Statement in finance costs. 

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments include equity 
investments. Equity investments classified as available-for-
sale are those that are neither classified as held for trading 
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

After initial recognition unquoted equity instrument that do 
not have a quoted market price in and active market and 
whose fair value cannot be reliability measured are carried 
at cost. 

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to 
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term is 
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group 
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive 
markets and management’s intention to do so significantly 
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to 
reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification to loans 
and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet 
the definition of loans and receivables and the Group has 
the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable 
future or until maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the 
ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly.
For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of 
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any 
previous gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised 
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining 
life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between 
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also 
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. 
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then 
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the Income 
Statement.

3.5.1.3 Derecognition
A financial asset or a part of a financial asset or part of a 
group of similar financial assets is derecognised when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired

•  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third 
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either 

(a)  The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or

(b)  The Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained 
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing 
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involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and 
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee 
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to 
repay.

3.5.1.4 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, 
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably 
estimated. 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group 
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant. If the Group determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it 
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar 
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them 
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed 
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash 
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 
is recognised in the Income Statement. Interest income 
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount 
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of 
finance income in the Income Statement. Loans together 
with the associated allowance are written off when there is 
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has 
been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a 
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment 
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by 
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later 
recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the 
Income Statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group 
assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment or a group of investments 
is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified 
as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include 
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against 
the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against 
the period in which the fair value has been below its original 
cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative 
loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition 
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that investment previously recognised in the Income 
Statement is removed from other comprehensive income 
and recognised in the Income Statement. Impairment losses 
on equity investments are not reversed through the Income 
Statement;

Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income.

3.5.2 Financial Liabilities

3.5.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified 
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
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instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group 
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, 
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable 
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other 
payables, bank overdrafts and loans and borrowings.

3.5.2.2 Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified 
as Loans and Borrowings are measured as described below:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
the Income Statement when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance costs in the Income Statement.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Income Statement.

3.5.3 Fair value of financial instruments 
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in 
active markets at each reporting date is determined by 
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations 
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short 
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments not traded in an active market, 

the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may include:

•  Using recent arm’s length market transactions
•  Reference to the current fair value of another instrument 

that is substantially the same
•  A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

For financial instruments that do not have a quoted market 
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be 
reliability measured are carried at cost.

3.6 Current and Non Current Liabilities
Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the Statement of 
Financial Position are those which fall due for payment on 
demand or within one year from the reporting date. Non-
current liabilities are those balances that fall due for payment 
later than one year from the reporting date.

3.6.1 Employee Benefits 

3.6.1.1  Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ 
              Provident Fund and Employees Trust Fund
Mercantile Shipping Company PLC and Mercantile Global 
Shipping Limited do not have employees and the employees 
of Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Limited are eligible for 
Employee Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ 
Trust Fund Contributions in line with respective Statutes 
and Regulations. The Companies contribute 12% and 3% 
of gross emoluments of employees to Employee Provident 
Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

3.6.1.2 Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan 
(Gratuity) other than a defined contribution plan. In order 
to meet this liability; a provision is made in the Statement 
of Financial Position in a manner computed based on 
the Projected Unit Credit Method of LKAS 19- Employee 
Benefits. 

The resulting difference between brought forward provision 
at the beginning of the year, net of any payment made, and 
the carried forward provision at the end of the year, is dealt 
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
  
Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the 
first year of service for all employees, in conformity with 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
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LKAS 19 on employee benefit. However, under the Payment 
of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employee 
arises only on completion of 5 years of continued service.

3.6.1.3 Short term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an 
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 
is provided.

3.6.2 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement 
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to 
any provision is presented in the Income Statement net of 
any reimbursement.

3.6.3 Capital Commitments and Contingencies 
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group 
are disclosed in Note 23 to the Financial Statements.

3.6.4 Stated Capital 

3.6.4.1 Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share 
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of 
any tax effects.

3.7 General

3.7.1 Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
All material post Balance Sheet events have been 
considered and where appropriate adjustments or 
disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the 
Financial Statements.

3.7.2 Earnings per Share
The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its 
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding during the period.
  
3.7.3 Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the 
“indirect method”. Finance costs paid is classified as an 
operating cash flow. Loan Repayments and Proceeds have 
been classified as financing cash flows.

3.7.4 Use of Estimates and judgments
The preparation of the Group consolidated Financial 
Statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Judgments and estimates 
are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Hence actual experience and 
results may differ from these judgments and estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if 
the revision affects only that period and any future periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty 
and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 
in the Financial Statements is included in the following notes.
 
Going Concern
The management has made an assessment on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it 
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable 
future. Material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
the management assessment of the mitigating factors are 
enumerated under Note 2.4 in the financial statements.

Defined Benefit Obligation
The cost of the defined benefit plans is determined based 
on the projected unit credit method of  LKAS 19- Employee 
Benefits. A formula method involves making various 
assumptions determining the discount rates and future 
salary increases. Due to the long–term nature of these plans, 
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014
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Useful Life Time of the Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group reviews the residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of assets at each reporting date. 
Judgment of the management is exercised in the estimation 
of these values, rates methods and hence they are subject to 
uncertainty.

Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 
management judgment is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon 
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together 
with future tax planning strategies. 

Owner Occupied Properties and Investment Property
In determining if a property qualifies as an Investment 
Property, the Group makes a judgment whether the property 
generates independent cash flows rather than cash flows 
that are attributable not only to the property but also other 
assets. Judgment is also applied in determining if ancillary 
services are significant, so that a property does not qualify 
as investment property.       

Functional Currency
The choice of the functional currency of the Companies 
in the Group has been made based on factors such as 
the primary economic environment in which the Company  
operates, the currency that mainly influences sales prices for 
services, costs of providing goods and services and labor 
costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
In particular, management’s judgment is required in the 
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows 
when determining the impairment. These estimates are 
based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual 
results may differ, resulting in changes in future periods.

3.8 Segmental Information
An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
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revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 
other components. For management purposes, the Group 
is organised into one operating segment based on their 
services, which is hiring of vessels for international sea cargo 
operation.  

There are no significant components to be identified other 
than hiring vessels in the group and is the only significant 
business undertaking within the Group Companies.

This operating segments’ operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the management to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its 
performance, and for which discrete financial information is 
available.

4. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of 
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are listed 
below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued, 
which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable 
at a future date. The Company intends to adopt those 
standards when they become effective and those are set out 
below.

SLFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and  
                   Measurement

This standard was originally effective for annual periods 
commencing on or after 01 January 2015. However, the 
effective date has been deferred subsequently and the 
revised effective date is yet to be announced.

In addition to the above following standards also have been 
issued and will be effective from 01 January 2014. 

SLFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement
SLFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
SLFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements
SLFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Based on the preliminary analysis performed, the above 
Standards on adoption are not expected to have any 
material impact on the financial statements.
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5. REVENUE Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Rendering of Service - International  566,822,958  561,733,868  -  - 
Management Fees  -  -  3,794,831  13,973,610 
Rent Income  1,941,900  3,248,000  1,941,900  3,248,000 

 568,764,858  564,981,868  5,736,731  17,221,610 

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  2,589,286  -  2,589,286  - 
Sundry Income  9,830  2,800,966  7,700  1,065,096 
Dividend Income  207,796  -  207,796  - 
Exchange Gain  7,521  2,629,466  -  178,965 
Other  449,962  -  398,784  - 

 3,264,395  5,430,432  3,203,566  1,244,061 

7. FINANCE COSTS AND INCOME Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

7.1 Finance Cost Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Interest on Bank Loan  115,721,410  111,335,180  495,644  - 
Loss on Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  -  71,757  -  71,757 

 115,721,410  111,406,937  495,644  71,757 
7.2 Finance Income

Fair Value Gain on Investment  19,992  -  19,992  - 
Interest Income  2,635,663  3,573,128  2,634,591  3,573,128 

 2,655,655  3,573,128  2,654,583  3,573,128 
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8. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
The Group has a 50% interest in  H & M Shipping Services (Private) Limited, a jointly controlled entity involved in providing maritime services to vessels within and 
outside the territorial waters of Sri Lanka operating with the brand “Mercmas”.

H & M Shipping Services (Private) Limited is a private entity that is not listed on any public exchange. The following table illustrates summarised financial information 
of the Group’s investment in H & M Shipping Services (Private) Limited.

The summarised financial information of the Company’s investments in H & M Shipping Services (Private) Limited and the Group’s share of loss considered for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 under equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2014 2013
Rs. Rs.

Statement of financial position:
Current assets  3,914,406  4,297,950 
Non-current assets  29,522,774  35,963,805 
Current liabilities  (9,488,852)  (6,748,423)
Non-current liabilities  (3,541,536)  (5,833,333)
Equity  20,406,792  27,679,999 

2014 2013
Share of Profit/(Loss) Rs. Rs.
 Revenue  21,486,791  12,400,610 
Cost of sales  (16,222,879)  (6,111,850)
Administrative expenses  (11,066,489)  (7,418,157)
Selling and distribution costs  (370,149)  (350,094)
Finance costs  (1,100,482)  (840,509)
Loss after tax  (7,273,207)  (2,320,001)
Accumulated loss  (9,593,208)  - 
Cost of Investment  30,000,000  30,000,000 
Carrying Amount of Investment in a Joint Venture  20,406,792  27,679,999 

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at 31 March 2014.

9. PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Group Company

Stated after Charging /(Crediting) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Included in Cost of Sales
Employees Benefits including the following ;  164,920,895  150,226,001  -  - 
- Defined Contribution Plan Costs - (EPF and ETF)  5,593,129  5,755,860  -  - 
- Crew Staff Cost  159,327,766  144,470,142  -  - 

Depreciation  219,604,932  174,907,732  -  - 
Vessel Repair and Maintenance  97,904,714  78,956,740  -  - 

Included in Administrative Expenses
Employee Benefits including the following ;  1,793,398  4,846,891  1,852,030  264,003 
- Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity  (58,632)  199,995  -  - 
- Defined Contribution Plan Costs - (EPF and ETF)  177,840  571,653 -  - 
- Other Staff Cost  1,674,190  4,075,243 1,852,030  264,003 

Directors’ Emoluments  2,996,000  6,493,933  1,946,000  3,756,000 
Depreciation  - Property, Plant and Equipment  2,816,818  3,908,759  1,503,875  2,510,126 
                      - Investment Property  1,236,780  515,782  1,236,780  515,782 
Consultancy and Professional Fees  2,601,896  3,458,115  2,601,896  3,458,115 
Audit Fees  897,050  815,500  320,650  291,500 
Write off of GST Receivable  613,881  3,822,907  613,881  3,822,907 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE                  Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
31 March are as follows :

Current Income Tax
Current Tax Expense on Ordinary Activities for the Year (Note 10.1)  479,496  650,309  479,496  650,309 
Under/(Over) Provision of Current Taxes in respect of Prior Years  (Note 10.4)  (4,134,411)  (11,255,589)  (4,134,411)  (11,255,589)
Deferred Income Tax
Deferred Taxation (Reversal)/Charge (Note 10.3)  1,652,353  2,342,406  1,652,353  2,342,406 
Income Tax (Reversal)/Charge  (2,002,562)  (8,262,874)  (2,002,562)  (8,262,874)

10.1 A reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of accounting profit/ (Loss) multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows;

Accounting Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (187,758,707)  (132,707,023)  (15,051,977)  (628,783)
Aggregate Disallowed Expenses  3,154,541  2,731,335  3,154,541  2,731,335 
Aggregate Allowable Expenses and Other Income  (16,225,128)  (5,320,944)  (16,225,128)  (5,320,944)
Income Exempted from Tax  172,706,730  132,078,240  -  - 

 (28,122,565)  (3,218,392)  (28,122,565)  (3,218,392)

Other Sources of Income Liable to Tax
Finance Income  2,634,591  3,573,128  2,634,591  3,573,128 
Total Other Sources of Income Liable for Tax  2,634,591  3,573,128  2,634,591  3,573,128 

Total Statutory Income  2,634,591  3,573,128  2,634,591  3,573,128 
Tax Losses Brought Forward and utilized (Note 10.2)  (922,107)  (1,250,595)  (922,107)  (1,250,595)
Less : Qualifying Payments  -  -  -  - 
Taxable Income  1,712,484  2,322,533  1,712,484  2,322,533 

Statutory Tax Rate 28% 28% 28% 28%

Current Income Tax Expense  479,496  650,309  479,496  650,309 
 479,496  650,309  479,496  650,309 

10.2 Tax Losses Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tax Loss Brought Forward  31,573,907  29,606,110  24,431,342  22,463,545 
Tax Loss Incurred During the Year  28,122,565  3,218,392  28,122,565  3,218,392 
Tax Loss Utilized During the Year  (922,107)  (1,250,595)  (922,107)  (1,250,595)
Tax Losses Claimed in Previous Years  -  -  (23,620,251)  - 
Tax Losses Carried Forward  58,774,365  31,573,907  28,011,549  24,431,342 

10.3 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax Relates to the Followings - Company/Group

Balance Sheet Income Statement
2014 2013 2014 2013

Deferred Tax Liability Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Capital Allowances for Tax Purposes  2,365,476  830,918  1,534,558  (811,662)

 2,365,476  830,918  1,534,558  (811,662)
Deferred Tax Assets 
Retirement Benefit Obligation  128,414  128,414  -  103,320 
Brought Forward Tax Losses  232,371  350,167  117,796  3,050,748 

 360,785  478,580  117,796  3,154,068 

Deferred Income Tax Expense/(Income)  1,652,353  2,342,406 
Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liability  2,004,691  352,338 

The Deferred Tax asset arising from unused tax losses has been recognised up to the extent that it is probable that future taxable temporary differences available 
against which the unused tax loss can be utilised. Deferred tax asset arising from unused tax losses which has not been recognised in the financial statement as 
at 31 March 2014 amounts to Rs. 13,806,238/-(2013- Rs. 6,490,609/-).
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10.4 Tax in-respect of Prior Years
The reversal of the income tax payable balance during the year consist of reversal of tax liabilities resulted due to the clearance of outstanding tax matters with the 
Department of Inland Revenue. The remaining income tax payable consist of tax provisions made in previous years. This liability has not been crystallized as at 31 
March 2014 and the Department of Inland Revenue has ruled in favour of the Company. However, the Company awaits the final documentation to be completed in 
this regard.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

11.1 Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations.

11.2 Amount used as the Numerator: Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit/(loss) attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of Parent Company for Basic 
Earnings per Share

 (185,756,145)  (124,444,149)  (13,049,415)  7,634,091 

11.3 Number of Ordinary Shares used as the Denominator Number Number Number Number

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares in issue applicable to Basic 
Earnings Per Share  2,844,990  2,844,990  2,844,990  2,844,990 

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

12.1 Group

12.1.1 Gross Carrying Amounts
 Balance  Additions  Disposals Transfers During 

the Year
Exchange  Balance 

 As at Gain/ (Loss)  As at 
 01.04.2013  31.03.2014 

 Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.  Rs. 
At Cost

Freehold Land  6,775,000  -  -  (6,775,000)  -  - 
Buildings on Freehold Land  20,202,562  -  -  (20,202,562)  -  - 
Vessels  3,961,899,301  -  -  -  429,926,252  4,391,825,552 
Furniture and Fittings  2,854,071  -  -  -  -  2,854,071 
Office Equipment  6,379,553  -  -  -  -  6,379,553 
Motor Vehicles  10,994,892  -  (4,739,131)  -  -  6,255,761 
Air-conditioning Equipment  798,138  -  -  -  -  798,138 
Computers  1,972,333  384,000  (74,268)  -  28,059  2,310,125 
Generator  925,000  -  -  -  -  925,000 

 4,012,800,850  384,000  (4,813,399)  (26,977,562)  429,954,311  4,411,348,200 
Assets on Finance Leases
Motor Vehicles  5,339,700  -  -  -  579,367  5,919,067 

 5,339,700  -  -  -  579,367  5,919,067 
Total Gross Carrying Amount  4,018,140,550  384,000  (4,813,399)  (26,977,562)  430,533,677  4,417,267,267 
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12.1.2 Depreciation Balance Charge for Disposals Transfers During 
the Year

Exchange  Balance 
As at the year  (Gain)/Loss  As at 

01.04.2013  31.03.2014 
At Cost Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Buildings on Freehold Land  11,945,946  -  -  (11,945,946)  -  - 
Vessels  643,471,451  218,033,365  -  -  81,049,639  942,554,455 
Furniture and Fittings  2,854,071  -  -  -  -  2,854,071 
Office Equipment  6,364,053  3,875  -  -  -  6,367,928 
Motor Vehicles  8,869,892  1,500,000  (4,739,131)  -  -  5,630,761 
Air-conditioning Equipment  798,138  -  -  -  -  798,138 
Computers  1,801,272  67,692  (34,359)  -  14,904  1,849,510 
Generator  925,000  -  -  -  -  925,000 

 677,029,823  219,604,932  (4,773,490)  (11,945,946)  81,064,543  960,979,863 
Assets on Finance Leases
Motor Vehicles  2,241,468  1,245,353  -  -  307,338  3,794,158 

  
Total Depreciation  679,271,291  219,604,932  (4,773,490)  (11,945,946) 81,371,881  964,774,021 

2014 2013
12.1.3 Net Book value  Rs.  Rs. 

At Cost
Freehold Land  -  6,775,000 
Buildings on Freehold Land  -  8,256,616 
Vessels  3,449,271,097  3,318,427,850 
Motor Vehicles  625,000  2,125,000 
Office Equipment  11,625  15,500 
Computers  460,615  171,061 
Generator  -  - 

 3,450,368,337  3,335,771,027 
Assets on Finance Leases
Motor Vehicles  2,124,908  3,098,232 
Total Carrying Amount  3,452,493,245  3,338,869,259 

12.1.4 During the year, the Group acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 384,000/- (2013- 15,500/-). Cash payments amounting to 
Rs.384,000/- (2013- Rs. 15,500/-) were made during the year for the purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment.

12.1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment include fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amounts of  Rs. 13,037,475/- (2013-Rs.17,614,684/-).

12.1.6 The Group performed its annual impairment test considering the internal and external factors of impairment in March 2014. Among other factors,  the depression in 
the worldwide shipping industry which has been continuing for several  years has affected  charter hire rates. This indicates potential impairment of the two vessels 
owned by Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Limited.

The recoverable amount of the vessels as at 31 March 2014 has been determined based on a value in use computation using cash flows projections from financial 
budgets approved by the Board of Directors covering five-year period. The fair value less cost to sell values of vessels are determined by an independent valuer 
based on the market value. 

In assessing the value in use of the vessels, the Group has made assumptions about future charter hire rates, ship operating expenses, and the estimated remaining 
useful lives and the residual values of the vessels. These assumptions are based on historical and cyclical trends as well as future expectations. The management 
believes that the assumptions used to evaluate potential impairment are reasonable and appropriate. However, such assumption are highly subjective.

The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 4.43% and cash flows beyond the five-year period are considered without any growth rate.

The Group estimates residual values of its vessels by  reference to  resale values of similar vessels in the market.
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12.1.7 Information on the Freehold Land, Freehold Buildings of the Group

Company Address Ownership Extent
 No. of 

Buildings 
 Included Under 

Mercantile Shipping Company PLC No.441, K Cyril C Perera Mawatha, Colombo 13. Freehold 10.79 Perches 1 Investment
Property

No.108, Aluthmawatha Road, Colombo 15. Freehold 25.20 Perches 1 Investment
Property

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

12.2.1 Gross Carrying Amounts
 Balance  Additions  Disposals  Transfers  Balance 

 As at  During the  As at 
 01.04.2013  Year  31.03.2014 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
At Cost
Freehold Land  6,775,000  -  -  (6,775,000)  - 
Buildings on Freehold Land  20,202,562  -  -  (20,202,562)  - 
Furniture and Fittings  2,854,071  -  -  -  2,854,071 
Office Equipment  6,379,553  -  -  -  6,379,553 
Motor Vehicles  10,994,892  -  (4,739,131)  -  6,255,761 
Air-conditioning Equipment  798,138  -  -  -  798,138 
Computers  1,678,530  384,000  -  -  2,062,530 
Generator  925,000  -  -  -  925,000 
Total Gross Carrying Amount  50,607,746  384,000  (4,739,131)  (26,977,562)  19,275,053 

12.2.2 Depreciation  Balance  Charge for  Disposals  Transfers  Balance 
 As at  the year   During the  As at 

 01.04.2013  Year  31.03.2014 
At Cost  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Buildings on Freehold Land  11,945,946  -  -  (11,945,946)  - 
Furniture and Fittings  2,854,071  -  -  -  2,854,071 
Office Equipment  6,364,053  3,875  -  -  6,367,928 
Motor Vehicles  8,869,892  1,500,000  (4,739,131)  -  5,630,761 
Air-conditioning Equipment  798,138  -  -  -  798,138 
Computers  1,678,530  -  -  -  1,678,530 
Generator  925,000  -  -  -  925,000 
Total Depreciation  33,435,630  1,503,875  (4,739,131)  (11,945,946)  18,254,428 

2014 2013
12.2.3 Net Book value  Rs.  Rs. 

At Cost
Freehold Land  -  6,775,000 
Buildings on Freehold Land  -  8,256,616 
Office Equipment  11,625  15,500 
Motor Vehicles  625,000  2,125,000 
Computers  384,000  - 
Generator  -  - 
Total Carrying Amount  1,020,625  17,172,116 

12.2.4 During the year, the Company has acquired Property, Plant and Equipment of Rs. 384,000/- (2013- Rs.15,500/- ). Cash payments amounting to Rs.384,000/- 
(2013- Rs.15,500/-) were made during the year for the purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment.

12.2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment include fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of  Rs.13,037,475 /-   (2013 - Rs.17,614,684/).
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - COMPANY/GROUP Group / Company

13.1 Cost 2014 2013
Rs. Rs.

As at 1 April  19,135,649  19,135,649 
Additions made during the year  48,341,119  - 
Transfers from property, plant and equipment during the year  26,977,562  - 
Disposals made during the year  -  - 
As at 31 March  94,454,330  19,135,649 

13.2 Depreciation 
As at 1 April  10,315,648  9,799,866 
Charge for the Year  1,236,780  515,782 
Transfers from property, plant and equipment during the year  11,945,946  - 
As at 31 March  23,498,374  10,315,648 

Net Book Values  70,955,955  8,820,001 

13.3 Capital Working Progress
As at 1 April  4,989,818  - 
Additions during the year  43,351,301  4,989,818 
Capitalised During the year  (48,341,119)  - 
As at 31 March  -  4,989,818 

Total Carrying Value  70,955,955  13,809,818 

13.4 Fair values of the investment properties  as at 31 March 2014  has been assessed by an independent professional valuer Mr. S J A N Jayakody  and such fair value 
has been estimated as Rs. 159,500,000/- based on current open market value basis.

13.5 Investment Property includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of  Rs. 10,315,648/-  (2013 - Rs.10,315,648/-).

13.6 During the year, the Group earned rental income of Rs. 1,941,900/- (2013- Rs. 2,300,000/-) from the investment property and direct operating expenses of Rs. 
152,181/- (2013- Rs. 549,887/-) have been incurred in maintaining such property.

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

14.1 Non-Quoted 
Country Holding 

of 2014 2013
Incorporation  %  Rs.  Rs. 

Mercantile Global Shipping Limited Sri Lanka 100%  15,000,000  15,000,000 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited (Note 14.1.1)

Sri Lanka 100%  237,646,078  237,646,078 
Total Carrying Value of Investment in Subsidiaries  252,646,078  252,646,078 

 252,646,078  252,646,078 

14.1.1 Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited  2014  2013 
 Rs.  Rs. 

Issued shares  230,000,000  150,000,000 
New share issued during the year  7,600,000  80,000,000 
Share pending allotment (Note 14.1.2)  46,078  7,646,078 

 237,646,078  237,646,078 

14.1.2 Non -Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings made available to the Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Limited (Subsidiary) as at 31 March 2011 has been reclassified 
under the Investment in Subsidiaries in line with board of directors resolution to issue shares lieu of the same.
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15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS  Group  Company 

15.1 Other Financial Assets 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit or loss
Quoted Equity Shares (Note 15.1.1.1)  219,555  199,563  219,555  199,563 
Government Treasury Bills  -  21,579,816  -  21,579,816 
Fixed Deposits  12,756,281  -  12,756,281  - 

 12,975,836  21,779,379  12,975,836  21,779,379 

Available for sale Investments
Non-Quoted Equity Shares (Note 15.1.2.1)  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630 

 1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630 

Total other financial assets  14,273,466  23,077,009  14,273,466  23,077,009 

Total current  12,975,836  21,779,379  12,975,836  21,779,379 
Total non-current  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has invested in listed equity securities. The fair value of the quoted shares is determined by reference to published price quotation in an active market.

Available-for-sale investments

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of 
investments is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in 
the fair value of the investment below its cost. The determination of what is ‘ significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment.

15.1.1 Fair Value through Profit or Loss Group / Company

15.1.1.1 Investments in Quoted Equity Securities 2014 2013
Shares  Carrying  Market Shares  Carrying  Market

Value Value Value Value
 Number Rs. Rs.  Number Rs. Rs.

Lanka Walltile PLC 3,570  199,563  219,555 3,570  271,320  199,563 
 199,563  219,555  271,320  199,563 

Fair value adjustment of investments  19,992  -  (71,757)  - 
 219,555  219,555  199,563  199,563 

15.1.2 Available for Sale Investments

15.1.2.1 Investments in Non-Quoted Equity Securities
2014 2013

Shares  Carrying  Shares  Carrying  
Value Value

 Number Rs.  Number Rs.

Mercantile Shipping Agencies Limited 11,000  1,297,630 11,000  1,297,630 
 1,297,630  1,297,630 
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15.2 Fair values

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of Financial Assets of the Group that are carried in the financial statements.

Carrying amount Fair value

2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables  20,893,849  20,586,128  20,893,849  20,586,128 
Other financial assets

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss  12,975,836  21,779,379  12,975,836  21,779,379 
Available-for-sale investments  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630  1,297,630 

Cash and short-term deposits  79,414,300  101,952,794  79,414,300  101,952,794 
Total  114,581,614  145,615,931  114,581,614  145,615,931 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing 
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

- Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables and other financial assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
   instruments.

15.2.1 Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data
As at 31 March 2014, the Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value on the statement of financial position:

As at
Assets measured at fair value 31 March 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Quoted Equity Shares  219,555  219,555  -  - 

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity Shares  1,297,630  -  -  1,297,630 

During the reporting period ending 31 March 2014 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

As at
Assets measured at fair value 31 March 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Quoted Equity Shares  199,563  199,563  -  - 
Government Treasury Bills  21,579,816  21,579,816  -  - 

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity Shares  1,297,630  -  -  1,297,630 

During the reporting period ending 31 March 2014 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements of Level 3 financial instruments

The Group carries unquoted equity shares as available-for-sale instruments classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
There were no acquisition/disposal of available for sale equity share investments during the year.
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Group Company 
16. INVENTORIES

2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Consumable  8,527,499  2,980,354  -  - 
 8,527,499  2,980,354  -  - 

17. OTHER RECEIVABLES Group  Company 
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other Debtors  924,987  16,019,403  924,987  16,019,403 
VAT Receivables  17,468,861  -  17,468,861  - 
Amounts Due from Related Parties (Note 17.1)  2,500,000  4,566,725  2,500,000  1,911,339 

 20,893,849  20,586,128  20,893,849  17,930,742 

17.1 Amounts Due from Related Parties  Relationship Group Company 
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited Subsidiary  -  -  -  1,262,480 
Mercantile Marine Management Limited Affiliate  -  4,566,725  -  648,859 
H & M Shipping Services (Pvt) Ltd Joint Venture  2,500,000  -  2,500,000  - 

 2,500,000  4,566,725  2,500,000  1,911,339 

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT  Group  Company 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Favorable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances
Bank Balances  79,414,300  101,952,794  2,861,194  5,408,632 
Short Term Investments (Note 15)  -  21,579,816  -  21,579,816 

 79,414,300  123,532,610  2,861,194  26,988,448 

Unfavorable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances
Bank Overdrafts  (546,760)  (476,566)  (546,760)  (467,000)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement  78,867,540  123,056,044  2,314,434  26,521,448 

19. STATED CAPITAL 2014 2013
Number Rs. Number Rs.

Fully paid Ordinary Shares (Note 19.1)  2,844,990  37,262,606  2,844,990  37,262,606 
 2,844,990  37,262,606  2,844,990  37,262,606 

19.1 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
As at 1 April  2,844,990  37,262,606  2,844,990  37,262,606 
Issue of Shares  -  -  -  - 
As at 31 March  2,844,990  37,262,606  2,844,990  37,262,606 
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20. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group

20.1 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013

 Amount   Amount   Total  Amount   Amount   Total 
 Repayable  Repayable  Repayable  Repayable 

 Within 1 Year  After 1 Year  Within 1 Year  After 1 Year 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Bank Loans (Note 20.1.1)  84,798,855  3,560,938,976  3,645,737,831  73,791,370  3,254,116,738  3,327,908,108 
Finance Leases (Note 20.1.2)  -  -  -  357,712  -  357,712 
Bank Overdraft (Note 18)  546,760  -  546,760  467,000  -  476,566 

 85,345,615  3,560,938,976  3,646,284,591  74,616,083  3,254,116,738  3,328,742,387 

20.1.1 Bank Loans Balance
 As at 

 01.04.2013 

 Loans  
Obtained

 Repayments  Exchange 
(Gain)/ 
 Loss 

Balance
 As at 

 31.03.2014 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Bremer LandesBank- Germany  3,327,908,108  -  77,794,407  357,124,130  3,607,237,831 
Commercial Bank Loan  -  40,000,000  1,500,000  -  38,500,000 

 3,327,908,108  40,000,000  79,294,407  357,124,130  3,645,737,831 

Security:
A first statutory mortgage in account current form of Vessels together (if applicable) with a pertaining deed of covenants covering the loan, interest and cost; and assignment 
of insurances contracted in respect of Vessels and its operation together with notices of assignment to and acknowledgement by the insurers together with the usual letter 
of undertaking of brokers and assignment of all freights, charter hires, demurrage, detention and requisition compensation and all other monies earned or to be earned by 
the Vessels during the term of loan and letter of Support issued by the  Mercantile Shipping Company PLC, covering all the obligations of borrower under the loan agreement.

Terms of Loan Repayment;
Initial Repayment Terms
Tranche A (Euro 20,300,000) shall be repaid by 56 equal consecutive quarter annual installments of Euro 362,500, is paid from six months after the delivery date.

Tranche B (Euro 2,500,000) shall be repaid by 26 equal consecutive quarter annual installments of Euro 92,600, and a final installment of Euro 92,400.   
The first tranche  B installment shall be paid from six months after the delivery date and the final installment being due and payable at the end of the term of the tranche B.

Revised Repayment Terms
Bremer LandesBank has granted a revised repayment scheme for the capital repayments of the above loans which were due in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

The Capital repayment due for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounting to Euro 1,365,300 comprising of 75% of tranche A and B has been  deferred. The total differed 
installments of tranche A & B as at 31 March 2014 amounting to Euro 4,778,550 shall be repaid in whole or in parts as soon as whenever sufficient liquidity is available, 
but latest on 04th February 2024.

The Company will continue to repay 25% of the due installments for the year  of tranche A & B of the above loans during the year 2015, until such time that the repayment 
terms are negotiated and the formal approval for the proposed repayment plan will be communicated to the  Company.

Interest
Euro Inter Bank Offer Rate (EURIBOR) plus margin.
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Company

20.2 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013

 Amount   Amount   Total  Amount   Amount   Total 
 Repayable  Repayable  Repayable  Repayable 

 Within 1 Year  After 1 Year  Within 1 Year  After 1 Year 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Bank Loans (Note 20.1.1)  3,000,000  35,500,000  70,587  -  -  - 
Bank Overdraft  546,760  -  546,760  467,000  -  467,000 

 3,546,760  35,500,000  617,347  467,000  -  467,000 

20.2.1 Bank Loans Balance
 As at 

 01.04.2013 

 Loans  
Obtained

 Repayments  Exchange 
(Gain)/ 
 Loss 

Balance
 As at 

 31.03.2014 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Commercial Bank Loan  -  40,000,000 1,500,000  - 38,500,000
 -  40,000,000 1,500,000  - 38,500,000

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)
Year ended 31 March 2014

20.2.2 Finance Lease As at Obtained Repayments Exchange As at 
01.04.2013 During the Year (Gain) / Loss 31.03.2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
LB Finance PLC  367,896  -  (367,896)  - 
Gross Liability  367,896  -  (367,896)  -  - 
Finance Charges Allocated to Future Periods  (10,183)  -  10,183  - 
Net Liability  357,713  -  (357,713)  -  - 

21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Defined Benefit Obligation - Gratuity  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year  840,468  1,015,237  458,621  827,621 
Provision/Reversal of provision for the year  (58,632)  209,828  -  - 
Benefit paid/Transferred to other payables  (458,621)  (369,000)  (458,621)  (369,000)
Exchange (Gain) /Loss  38,346  (15,597)  -  - 
Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year  361,561  840,468  -  458,621 

21.1 Mercantile Shipping Company PlC and Mercantile Global Shipping Company (Pvt) limited  do  not have employees as at 31 March 2014. Retirement Benefit 
Obligation of Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Limited has been assessed  based on the Projected Unit Credit method of LKAS 19- Employee  Benefits.

Group/Company
2014 2013

The principal assumptions used were as follows;
Discount Rate 10% 11%
Future Salary Increment Rate 8% 9%
Retirement Age 62 years 62 years

22. OTHER PAYABLES Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other Payables  25,993,847  15,114,827  458,621  - 
Sundry Creditors including Accrued Expenses  8,901,347  8,491,780  2,932,081  1,381,996 
Interest Payable  21,723,962  21,103,262  -  - 
Other Payables - Related Parties (Note 22.1)  5,034,603  -  30,192,582  29,217,428 

 61,653,760  44,709,869  33,583,284  30,599,424 
22.1 Other Payable- Related Parties

Relationship Group Company

Mercantile Marine Management Limited Affiliate  5,034,603  -  269,551  - 
Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Private) Limited Subsidiary  -  -  774,211  - 
Mercantile Global Shipping Limited Subsidiary  -  -  29,148,820  29,217,428 

 5,034,603  -  30,192,582  29,217,428 
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23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Group/Company

23.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments
The Company does not have any significant capital commitments and contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.

23.2 Contingent Liabilities
Mercantile Shipping Company PLC has given a bank guarantee on behalf of Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Ltd for the loan obtained from Bremer LandesBank-Germany.

The Group/Company does not have significant contingent liabilities as at the Reporting date other than above.

24. ASSETS PLEDGED

Group Nature of Liability Company As at As at Included underNature of Assets 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Rs. Rs.

Vessels Interest Bearing Loans 
and Borrowings-                               
Bremer Landesbank, 
Germany

Mercantile Emerald 
Shipping (Pvt) Ltd

 3,449,271,097  3,318,427,850 Property, Plant and 
Equipment

Building at No.108, Aluthmawatha Road, Colombo 15 Interest Bearing Loans and 
Borrowings-Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon.

Mercantile Shipping 
Company PLC.

 70,955,955  - Investment Property

Company Nature of Liability Company As at As at
Nature of Assets 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Rs. Rs.
Building at No.108, Aluthmawatha Road, Colombo 15 Interest Bearing Loans and 

Borrowings-Commercial 
Bank Of Ceylon.

Mercantile Shipping 
Company PLC.

 70,955,955  - Investment Property

25. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Group/Company
There have been no material events occurring after the balance sheet date that require adjustments to or disclosure in these Financial Statements.
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26.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

 Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows; 

Significant 
Investor Fully Owned Subsidiaries Affiliates Total

Reederei 
Eugen 

Freiderich 
GmbH  

Mercantile Global  
Shipping Ltd

Mercantile Emerald  
Shipping (Pvt) Ltd

Name of the Company and 
Relationship

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Nature of Transaction 
As at 01 April  -  -  (29,217,428)  (28,524,084)  1,262,480  1,269,168  30,648,859  -  2,693,911  (27,254,916)
Rendering of Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  869,000  948,000  869,000  948,000 
Funds Received  -  -  -  (650,000)  -  -  -  -  -  (650,000)
Management Fees Charged  -  -  -  -  6,463,126  16,164,103  -  -  6,463,126  16,164,103 
Management Fee Paid  -  -  -  -  -  (16,606,803)  -  -  -  (16,606,803)
Settlement of Liabilities by the Company  -  -  3,523,346  1,068,309  -  -  3,523,346  1,068,309 
Settlement of Liabilities on behalf of the 
Company

 -  - 
 68,608  (43,344)  (12,023,163)  (632,297)  (1,787,410)  (299,141)  (13,741,965)  (974,782)

Provision for Doubtful Receivables  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Investment in Shares  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  30,000,000  -  30,000,000 
As at 31 March  -  -  (29,148,820)  (29,217,428)  (774,211)  1,262,480  29,730,449  30,648,859  (192,582)  2,693,911 

Included in 
Trade and Other Receivables  -  -  -  -  (774,211)  1,262,480  -  648,859  (774,211)  1,911,339 
Trade and Other Payables  -  -  (29,148,820)  (29,217,428)  -  -  (269,551)  -  (29,418,371)  (29,217,428)
Investment in Joint Venture  -  -  -  -  -  -  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000 

 -  -  (29,148,820)  (29,217,428)  (774,211)  1,262,480  29,730,449  30,648,859  (192,582)  2,693,911 

The Company has made available corporate guarantee on interest bearing loan obtained from Bremer LandesBank Germany by Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Ltd .

Affiliates Include Mercantile Shipping Agencies Limited, Mercantile Marine Management Limited and H & M Shipping Services (Pvt) Ltd.

The Company has made available corporate guarantee on interest bearing loan obtained from Bremer LandesBank Germany by Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Ltd .

Affiliates Include Mercantile Shipping Agencies Limited, Mercantile Marine Management Limited and H & M Shipping Services (Pvt) Ltd.

Transactions of Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) Ltd with Reederi Eugan Freiderich GmbH 2014 2013
Rs. Rs.

Technical Management Services Fee  24,615,238  19,457,184 
Business Procurement Fee  -  12,841,741 
Settlement of Technical Management and Business Procurement Fee  (24,615,238)  (32,298,925)

26.1 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company  
Group  Company 

The key management personnel of the Company are the members of its Board of Directors. 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Key Management Personnel Compensation 
Short-term employee benefits  2,996,000  6,493,933  1,946,000  3,756,000 

 2,996,000  6,493,933  1,946,000  3,756,000 

In addition to above compensation, the Company also provides non-cash benefits  to Key Management Personnel in terms of employment contracts with them.
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26.2  Employee Share Trust - Mercantile Shipping Company PLC
Employees Share Trust of Mercantile Shipping Company PLC was created by way of transferring the shares of  the Company to Jacey Trust Ltd in 2009 which was financed 
by Mercantile Marine Management Limited.

In compliance with the regulations of The Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka, the Board of Directors of the Company has decided to wind up  the Share Trust 
before 31 March 2015 since there are no employees attached to the Company and transfer the sales proceeds to Mercantile Marine Management Limited who financed the  
Fund originally.

During the year the Company or the Board of Directors did not have any transaction with the Employees Share Trust . No share options have been granted to the Board of 
Directors under the employees share Trust plan.

27.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Shipping is a volatile industry with its own inherent risks. However the trend is closely linked to the world trade, economy and economic crisis existing over the time. The 
cycle of recovery has also been seen over the years. However, we are faced with an unusual situation where we are experiencing the depressed market conditions for the 
6th consecutive year.

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board has delegated its authority to 
the Audit Committee which is supported by the senior management in identifying, measuring and managing the risk of the Group.

The Audit committee meets quarterly at a minimum to review and assess the Group’s overall risks and to focus on policy recommendations and strategies and the Board of 
Directors are duly updated of its activities.

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include Market risk and Liquidity risk. The 
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks.

Liquidity Risk
Group needs to ensure that sufficient cash flows are available for its daily operations and repayment of long term borrowings. Therefore, the Group’s financial management 
practices forecast and keep a track on cash flow movements so that possible issues could be identified in advance. Further, the Group enter into an agreements with the 
lender (bank) to defer loan repayments when the necessity arises thus the liquidity position of the Group is maintained.

The table below summarizes the maturity profiles of the Group/Company financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Group
Amounts in Rs. ‘000

On Demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Interest Bearing loans and Borrowings -  21,200  63,600  1,332,195  2,228,779  3,645,774 

Company
Amounts in Rs. ‘000

On Demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Interest Bearing loans and Borrowings -  750  2,250  23,400  12,100  38,500 

Credit Risk
The Group has exposure to credit risk only through its charterer. However, as agreed with the charterer, hire payments are received in advance every month. This has helped 
mitigating credit risk at large.
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Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk given the long term debt financing from a European bank. These foreign currency loans of Mercantile Emerald Shipping (Pvt) 
Ltd  have been obtained at European market rates thus fluctuations in market rates affect the interest expenses of the Group. However, in mitigating the interest rate risk, the 
Group has come to an agreement with the bank to fix interest rates quarterly so that the effect of frequent (such as monthly) interest rate fluctuations is controlled.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings. Provided all other variables held constant. the 
Group’s/Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating borrowings, as follows:

Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group is substantially exposed to foreign exchange rate risks as its charter hire income and direct expenses in relation to operations of the Mercantile Emerald Shipping 
(Pvt) Ltd are in foreign currencies (i.e. USD and Euros). Income and direct expenses made of one vessel is based on US Dollars whereas, the same of the other vessel is in 
Euros. Further, functional currency of the subsidiary under which the vessels are being managed is Euros whilst Sri Lanka Rupees (LKR) being the Group’s reporting currency.

The Group mitigates foreign exchange risk by matching cash inflows with cash outflows of the respective currencies. Accordingly, Euro income vessel spends in Euros whereas 
USD income vessel spends in US Dollars on their direct expenses. Further, Euro bank borrowing also partially converted to USD and it is being paid in USD at a fixed exchange 
rate so that the foreign exchange rate risk is mitigated.

Foreign currency sensitivity – Profit before tax
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to profit before tax of the Group due to possible change in the USD and Euro exchange rates, provided all other variables held 
constant.

Sensitivity – Profit before tax
Amounts in Rs. ‘000
Increase /Decrease in interest rate Group / Company

2014
+50 basis points 590
-50 basis points  (590) 

Amounts in Rs. ‘000

Currency Increase / decrease in 
exchange rate

Effect on profit before 
tax Group / Company

2014

USD + 5%  2,590 
- 5%  (2,590)

Euro + 5%  2,525 
- 5%  (2,525)

Quoted Equity Price Risk
The company has invested in a listed equity shares which are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. 
However, the investment of the Mercantile Shipping Company PLC in listed shares is not a material investment which is held at 31, March 2014. Therefore equity price risk 
is not material to the financial statements.          
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Shareholders Information

Directors Shareholding as at 31 March 2014

Ainsley Nimal Ubesinghe Jayawardena 1
Captain Klaus Kriwat Nil
Thomas Kriwat Nil
Hettiarachchige Ranjith Kumara Wickramatileka 11,414
Tissa Nihal Jayasinghe Nil
Chinthaka Parakrama Punyajith Gamalath Hapudeniya Nil
Imtiaz Abidhusein Hassanally Esufally Nil
Galappaththi Mesthrige Vikum Pradeepa Nil
Sunil Obadage Nil
Kasturi Angela Chellaraja Wilson Nil

Public Shareholding as at 31 March 2014

Issued Shares (Ordinary Shares)  2,844,990 

Directors of the entity, their spouses
Mr. A N U Jayawardena  1 
Mr. H A R K Wickrematileka  11,414  (11,415)

Single shareholders holding 10% or more of shares
Reederei Eugen Friederich  (1,155,352)
Hemas Holdings PLC  (484,334)
Mercantile Marine Management Ltd  (308,282)
Jacey Trust Services (Pvt) Ltd  (285,357)  (2,233,325)

Public Holding  600,250 

Public Holding % 21.10%
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Shareholders Information (Contd...)

Analysis of Ordinary Shareholders According to the No. of Shares as at 31st March 2014

Description Local 
Holders

Foreign 
Holders

Local 
Shares

Foreign 
Shares

Local 
%

Foreign 
%

1 To 1000 Shares 683 2  47,956  115 1.69% 0.00%
1001 To 10000 Shares 19 0  65,028  - 2.29% 0.00%
10001 To 100000 Shares 2 0  21,801  - 0.77% 0.00%
100001 To 1000000 Shares 5 0  1,554,738  - 54.65% 0.00%
OVER 1000000 Shares 0 1  -  1,155,352 0.00% 40.61%

709 3  1,689,523  1,155,467 59.39% 40.61%

Trading Prices at the Colombo Stock Exchange 2014 2013

Closing Price for the year ended 31st March  120.00  144.30 

Date

Highest Price during the year ended 31st March 10.05.2013  189.90  244.40 

Lowest Price during the year ended 31st March 24.03.2014  110.10  120.00 
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Name No. of Shares %

Reederei Eugen Friederich GmbH Schiffahrtsgesellschaft 1,155,352 40.61
Hemas Holdings Plc 484,334 17.02
Mercantile Marine Management Limited 308,282 10.84
Jacey Trust Services (Private)Limited 285,357 10.03
Ceylon Shipping Corporation Limited 238,506 8.38
HSBC Intl Nominees Ltd/Deg-Deutsche Investitions-Und Entwicklung 238,259 8.37
Mr. Hetti Arachchige Ranjith Kumara Wickramatileka 11,414 0.40
Mr. Vallipuram Satyendra 10,387 0.37
Abc Capital Corporation Ltd 10,000 0.35
Waldock Mackenzie Limited/Mr.L.P. Hapangama 8,900 0.31
Mr. Kulappuarachchige Don Dammika Perera 6,546 0.23
Pan Asia Banking Corporation Plc/Mr.S.Gobinath 5,050 0.18
Mr. Rohan Edward Guy Codipilly 4,162 0.15
Mrs. Ramyapali Ekanayake De Silva 3,805 0.13
Miss. Amitha Sumithra Ranasinghe 3,804 0.13
Mr. Ginige Cyril Walter De Silva 3,424 0.12
Mr. Gajath Chrysantha Goonetilleke 3,210 0.11
Dr. Muthuramalingam Ramasubbu 2,625 0.09
Mr. Tuan Shirazi Salim 2,300 0.08
Shalsri Investments (Private) Ltd 1,998 0.07

2,787,715 97.99
Other Shareholders  57,275 2.01 
Total Issued Capital  2,844,990 100.00

Shareholders Information (Contd...)

Top 20 Shareholders
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2013/2014 2012/2013 
(Re-stated)

2011/2012 2010/2011 2009/2010

Turnover Rs.  568,764,858  564,981,868  609,503,093  599,081,726  481,488,862 

Profit Rs.  (188,387,648)  (133,507,426)  (32,216,448)  (23,352,793)  28,266,567 

Reserves Rs.  (73,225,165)  112,530,980  236,788,810  269,005,257  306,066,702 

Net Assets Rs.  (30,924,686)  157,462,962  290,784,068  305,749,931  331,229,141 

ROCE %  (200.39)  (81.48)  (11.08)  (7.63)  8.53 

EPS Rs.  (65.29)  (43.74)  (11.46)  (8.21)  9.94 

P/E Ratio times  (1.84)  (3.30)  (14.92)  (23.17)  10.14 

Dividend per Share Rs.  -  -  -  -  5.50 

Net Assets per Share Rs.  (10.87)  55.34  102.21  107.48  132.89 

Five Year Summary
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Notes
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Form of Proxy

I/we ……………………………………………………………………………………………………...........................................................

of ………………………………………………………………………………….………………..................................................................

being a member / members of The Mercantile Shipping Company PLC, hereby appoint …………………………...........................

…………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………..........................

of ……………………………………………………………………………………………..…….................................................................

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….or failing him,
    
Ainsley Nimal Ubesinghe Jayawardena      or failing him
Captain Klaus Kriwat        or failing him
Thomas Kriwat         or failing him  
Hettiarachchige Ranjith Kumara Wickramatileka     or failing him
Tissa Nihal Jayasinghe       or failing him
Chinthaka Parakrama Punyajith Gamalath Hapudeniya    or failing him
Imtiaz Abidhusein Hassanally Esufally      or failing him
Galappaththi Mesthrige Vikum Pradeepa      or failing him
Sunil Obadage        or failing him
Ms. Kasturi Angela Chellarajah Wilson     

as my/our proxy to represent me/us and *vote for me/us on my/our behalf as indicated below at the 33rd Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on 23rd September 2014 and at any adjournment thereof, and at every poll which may be 
taken in consequence, thereof.

1.  To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the Statement of 
Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2014 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.  Appointment of Directors in terms of Section 211 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.
 • Mr. A N U Jayawardena who has reached the age of 77 as a Director

 • Captain K Kriwat, who has reached the age of 73 as a Director

 • Mr. T N Jayasinghe who has reached the age of 70 as a Director 

3.  To re-elect H A R K Wickramatileka who retires by rotation in terms of Article 86, of the Articles 
of Association of the Company.

4.  To re-appoint the Auditors Messrs. Ernst & Young and to authorize the Board of Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

5.  To authorize Directors to determine contribution to Charities.

Signed this……………………day of …………………….2014.

FOR AGAINST

……………………………..
Signature of Shareholder* Speak 

Note: Instructions to complete are noted on the following page.
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•  Kindly perfect, the Form of Proxy, by filling in legibly your 
full name and address, signing in space provided, and 
filling in the signature.

•  If the form of proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relative 
Power of Attorney should also accompany the Form of 
Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not 
already been registered with the company.

•  In case of a Company / Corporation, the Proxy must 
be under its common seal which should be affixed 
and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of 
Association.

•  The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the 
registered office of the company No. 108, Aluthmawatha 
Road, Colombo 15, not less than forty eight (48) hours 
before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.

Instructions as to completion
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Vision

Mission

To pursue excellence for superior service
with ships operated and maintained

at the highest standards of quality to
enhance the long term interests of all our

stakeholders.

To maintain the position that
‘our customers are our partners in business’.

To expand our fleet of multipurpose
ships and develop new business towards

sustainable growth.

To be a reliable and competent partner in
the international shipping community and

become the leading ship owner in
Sri Lanka.


